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Chapter 481: The Power in Hand 

 

The manifestation of God’s will was really shocking. So, from then on, more and more people started to 

follow him. 

In this age, the so called ’follower’ was a special title, which was more special than the retinue and 

bodyguard. A retinue and bodyguard could be employed by money. The employees had to follow the 

master’s orders completely within the scope of their duties. Nevertheless, followers were spontaneous. 

The relationship between them and the one whom they followed was very sophisticated. Sometimes, 

this relationship was both casual and flexible as the followers could leave at any time. Nobody forced 

them to do anything. Sometimes, this relationship became very sacred. 

In Hebrew, the relationship between followers and the one being followed evoked many connotations. 

The simplest relationship between them was like that between fans and their idol. An intermediate 

relationship could be like that of team leaders and team members. And the strongest relationship 

between them was close to the strict relationship between masters and apprentices. The followers that 

suited the third relationship were gathered by the same belief. 

Usually, the relationship between followers and the one being followed could change freely between 

the above three relationships, and the three types of relationships often coexisted within one group of 

followers. However, followers who gathered from the same belief were rarely seen as they could almost 

sacrifice themselves for their belief. 

Zhang Tie’s followers fitted the last type. Because of this, Zhang Tie’s words had a great amount of 

influence over these followers. 

On the second day, before the sun rose and the Faerie Dragon star in the eastern sky had disappeared, 

over ten thousand of Zhang Tie’s followers outside the camp of huge bear tribe had already gone. 

Zhang Tie stood outside the camp in a set of thin clothes and stared at the place where the followers 

had been last night. Meanwhile, he tightly pursed his lips with perseverance. 

Before daybreak the breeze was still a bit cold. Additionally, Zhang Tie’s clothes and the hair on his 

forehead were messy. At this moment, he looked more like a casual neighboring teenager. After getting 

up he looked in the mirror and found a ring of fine hair around his lips, making him look more mature. 

Although it wasn’t daybreak yet, the military camp over the Ice and Snow Wilderness had already woken 

up. They were preparing for the coming war. 100,000 tents were pitched close to each other and went 

on for miles like steel chains across the ground. It was like a terrifying war machine. 

A vanguard of 3000 soldiers rushed out from the farthest camp under the gaze of Zhang Tie. Even 

though they were far away, Zhang Tie could still sense the slight earthquake caused by them. 

This was the strongest maneuvering power in Ice and Snow Wilderness! 

’This is also my power!’ 



Until now Zhang Tie still felt like it was an illusion, even when he saw the first batch of cavalrymen 

leaving the camp like a tide. 

In the Ice and Snow Wilderness very few tribes could establish 100,000 elite cavalrymen, which 

indicated the real fighting strength and strong background of the huge bear tribe. 

’Can I really hold this power?’ Zhang Tie asked himself as he looked at the vanguards gradually 

disappearing in the distance and the continuous military camp below. Zhang Tie’s eyes gradually became 

penetrating while a flame was jumping in his heart... 

At this moment, Roslav and Waajid came to him. 

These two people had stayed by his side for a long time and they had witnessed how he’d manifested 

the "God’s will" many times underground. They were most loyal to Zhang Tie and worshipped him with 

a blind and crazy trust. Therefore, Zhang Tie let them be the leaders of the bear-killing camp. 

Zhang Tie remembered when he was chased underground like a dog by a LV 10 strong fighter and he’d 

almost lost his life. By comparison, he now had two LV 10 strong fighters as his own bodyguards. How 

amazing it was! 

This was Zhang Tie’s first order for adjusting personnel positions and his first time executing the power 

of clan elder since promising to be the clan elder of huge bear tribe. Roslav and Waajid were naturally 

dispatched to Zhang Tie’s side. This order also made Roslav and Waajid thrilled. 

In Zhang Tie’s opinion, as the clan elder he should enjoy the right to make personnel decisions, as well as 

having the right to control resources and military. At least he felt good being the clan elder yesterday. 

Zhang Tie had tried these three rights yesterday and found that all of them were effective. 

"My Lord, your clothes and armor are ready!" 

Being addressed this way for the first time in reality, Zhang Tie was filled with mixed emotions. He had 

not imagined that his narcissistic illusion in Castle of Black Iron two years ago could be a reality. 

Roslav and Waajid brought over the new costume for Zhang Tie. Now that Zhang Tie had become the 

clan elder of huge bear tribe, his clothes as a pioneer and the warrior’s clothes prepared by Sabrina 

didn’t suit him anymore. In Ice and Snow Wilderness, as the clan elder of bear tribe, he had to wear a 

special costume so as to manifest his authority and position. 

Slavs worshipped the colors red, black and yellow. It was said that the powerful Slav Empire’s national 

flag had had the three colors before the Catastrophe. From then on, the costumes of the most 

honorable people in Ice and Snow Wilderness had been made with the three colors. 

Red pants the color of brilliant velvet, delicate black edging with golden decorative patterns, a shirt with 

lining and a high rising collar on a high-necked knight’s coat which could cover the back of the head... 

Soon after putting on the clothes came the armor. Zhang Tie was custom fitted with a set of black 

titanium alloy chained armor. A roaring bear head was on the chest portion of the armor. 

After putting the black armor on him, Roslav and Waajid buckled a golden woolen cloak onto Zhang Tie’s 

shoulders. 



Zhang Tie was relatively handsome within Ice and Snow Wilderness. After putting on this set of armor, 

he instantly became dignified, noble and brilliant. Even Roslav, Waajid and the other guards’ eyes 

glittered with an admiring look. Thankfully, after one month of experience as a d*mn father 

underground, he had already become immune to such gazes and expressions. Otherwise, he would have 

felt conceited. 

"My Lord, nobody fits this costume better than you in Ice and Snow Wilderness!" Roslav said sincerely. 

"I wonder, do elders of other bear tribes wear this?" 

"They pretty much look like this when they are going to lead their troops. If not, they could take off their 

armor and put on one Slav grand duke robe!" 

Zhang Tie nodded. This suit of armor was truly nice, from its color, pattern, and protective uses to its 

degree of comfort. Additionally, it matched Zhang Tie’s dark tearer gloves very well. If he wore them and 

joined the battle, nobody would think that they were not part of the matching set. 

"Let’s go!" After dressing up Zhang Tie walked out of his tent closely followed by Roslav, Waajid and a 

team of guards. 

"Which weapon do you want, my Lord?" Waajid asked. 

"The battle hammer that I used in the death game!" Zhang Tie replied. He knew that his biggest 

advantage at this moment was his great strength, which fit the craziest weapon. 

"That’s the bear-killing hammer of wild bear tribe. The battle hammer of huge bear tribe is Thor’s 

hammer, which fits the most powerful and fierce in the tribe. It’s even 118 kilograms heavier than bear-

killing hammer!" 

"No problem. Go fetch me the Thor’s hammer!" Zhang Tie nodded. After death game, he lit another two 

surging points and further released his potential. Even with over 100 kilograms more to carry, he would 

not feel that it was heavy at all. 

Waajid nodded as he inclined his head and whispered to one of his guards. After that, the guard left 

with three people. 

... 

At this time, the army of huge bear tribe had built a temporary drill ground in the wild. 

5000 strong cavalrymen were riding on their xiphodons with long spears and waiting for the arrival of 

Zhang Tie silently. 

The 5000 cavalrymen occupied an area equivalent to that of over 20,000 average cavalrymen. They 

were divided into five tidy square formations and were standing straight quietly. Occasionally, the 

breathing sound of the xiphodons could be heard from under the metal protective armor of their heads, 

like working the bellows. The xiphodons exhaled hot air through the pores on the protective armor of 

the nose like furnace steamers. The white steam in the icy air felt pretty powerful. 

These were the most powerful xiphodon cavalrymen in Ice and Snow Wilderness—the "King’s Knights 

Regiment" from huge bear tribe. If the 100,000 cavalrymen of huge bear tribe were the most powerful 



manoeuvring power in Ice and Snow Wilderness, the 5000 xiphodon cavalries were the most powerful 

living tanks among the 100,000 cavalries. 

At the sight of the 5000 xiphodon cavalrymen, all the high-ranking government officials and heads of the 

allied forces who were invited to pay a visit to the military drill, including Gangula, changed their 

expressions when they recalled the legend about the King’s Knights Regiment... 

Salem almost passed out at the sight of the 5000 xiphodons. Grey eagle tribe was not even qualified to 

have one xiphodon. The wild bear tribe, which was closest to grey eagle tribe, only had hundreds of 

xiphodons. 

... 

With the expectant public outside, Zhang Tie appeared in his new uniform on the other side of the drill 

ground with Sarlin, Toles and Gouras. 

Zhang Tie looked completely different to his previous downtrodden appearance. His costume, which 

could only be worn by around ten people in Ice and Snow Wilderness, was more persuasive than 

anything else. 

"This team is called King’s Knights Regiment because it was established for you, the king. This team will 

preserve and follow the doctrines and regulations of the great prophet like knights and wait for your 

arrival..." Elder Sarlin explained the background of this team to Zhang Tie as they walked forward. 

Listening calmly, Zhang Tie felt his heart pounding inside. 

"In the last hundreds of years, positions like regimental commander and clan elder of huge bear tribe 

were always vacant. All the affairs in the tribe were managed by the seniors. Previously, this knights 

regiment could only be matched with three deputy regimental commanders at most. In accordance with 

the great prophet’s advice, after you arrived and opened the key box, you were to be the regimental 

commander of this knights regiment. Except for you, nobody else is qualified to command this troop 

from today onwards. This armed force is under your direct affiliation. They are waiting for your review. 

Here’s your time..." 

When they entered the drill camp and drew close to those xiphodons, the three seniors all stopped. 

In front of Zhang Tie was hundreds of meters of long, plain road and rows of xiphodon cavalrymen on his 

left hand side. 

After taking a deep breath, under the gaze of the public, Zhang Tie carried his terrifying battle hammer 

and passed by the formation with firm and steady steps, while inclining his head towards those strong 

cavalrymen and xiphodons. 

... 

Chapter 482: Thor’s Hammer 

 



The xiphodons looked frightening in their steel armor. Combined with the knights also in steel battle 

armor and holding four to five meter long sharp spears in their hands, their assault power could only be 

imagined... 

Now only the rustling of Zhang Tie’s battle boots on the ground could be heard. When Zhang Tie passed 

by, all the warriors on xiphodons in each square formation raised their spears high. Meanwhile, they 

rotated their heads slowly along with Zhang Tie’s pace. 

The atmosphere at present looked majestic and solemn. 

Zhang Tie was silent. After passing by all of them, he came to the high platform which was specially 

prepared for him. Standing there, Zhang Tie glanced at the cavalrymen. The sacred totem of a bloody 

and fiery curtain behind him immediately rushed up over 200 meters high in the sky like a flying flame. 

At the same time, Zhang Tie lifted the Thor’s hammer with his right hand firmly. 

It was silent for four to five seconds, and then—— 

"Wula..." 

"Wula..." 

"Wula..." 

The overwhelming roars sounded at once. Gradually, the entire camp was filled with this sound... 

All the warriors saw the raised banner of their Lord. At this moment, each warrior of huge bear tribe 

became spirited... 

... 

Lifting the Thor’s hammer, Zhang Tie looked around as he roared, "From today on, you will no longer be 

known as King’s Knights Regiment. Drop that womanly name. That name doesn’t match how you’ve 

waited for hundreds of years. From now on, your troop will follow the name of my battle hammer. Now, 

tell me your name!" 

"Thor’s Hammer..." 

"Thor’s Hammer..." 

"Thor’s Hammer..." 

The 5000 xiphodon cavalrymen exerted their full strength as they roared. Responding to their excited 

masters, even the 5000 xiphodons started to bluster. The raucous sounds changed the atmosphere 

among the whole audience. 

Now, Pontiff Sarlin’s and the other two elders’ eyes began to gleam. They all understood why the great 

prophet had left that prophecy... 

Zhang Tie also became thrilled because he knew that he’d finally attained a strong power that he could 

dominate. Elzida didn’t cheat him. He’d truly left many good things to Zhang Tie. 

... 



One hour later, the huge bear tribe’s army of 100,000 warriors set out and rolled towards the southeast 

in an overwhelming manner. 

On such an occasion, all the military officials and heads of the allied forces were standing on the small 

mountain slope. They felt goose bumps all over while their limbs turned cold. 100,000 warriors of huge 

bear tribe were heading for Eschyle City. Why were they? Was Peter, who had just been the previous 

clan elder of huge bear tribe, going to conquer the entire Ice and Snow Wilderness by force? 

In the past ten or more hours, from last night to this morning, what had happened made everybody 

confused. Having still not recovered from the pleasure of escaping, everybody was in shock and 

frustration once again. 

Peter manifested God’s will underground... 

Peter became the clan elder of huge bear tribe and made the prophecy of Elzida come true... 

The first thing that Peter did after becoming the clan elder of huge bear tribe was to lead his army 

towards Eschyle City... 

All these were big events, especially the last two, which could almost influence the entire history of the 

Ice and Snow Wilderness. These consecutive events really shocked the witnesses. 

Everyone peered at Gangular’s sour face, which looked entirely like a bitter gourd... 

Over 6000 warriors of wild bear tribe became Peter’s followers. They left wild bear tribe without a word. 

This loss would definitely fall on Peter and Sabrina, whose infamous reputation was known throughout 

the entire Ice and Snow Wilderness. She and Peter escaped together with some stone vats. Curiously, 

Peter even accepted her. How would her father feel if he was told about that news. 

The moment he recalled wild bear tribe, Gangula would feel furious. When Peter started to manifest 

God’s will underground, Gangula had already sent a message to wild bear tribe through remote sensing 

crystal, hoping his father would pay attention to that. Unexpectedly, the authenticity of his report didn’t 

arouse his father’s attention. Instead, he’d only got the sneers of his half-brothers, who had the same 

father as him but different mothers. 

"My dear younger brother, even though you are trapped underground, you don’t have to make up such 

a poor lie for the entire tribe to save you. Why did you fabricate that someone manifested the God’s will 

there? It seems that you must be living poorly underground. However, please be reassured. Given that 

we have hundreds of thousands of warriors and Sabrina and you are both trapped there, we will come 

to save you. However, you have to wait for a few days before the tunnel is dredged!" 

This was the reply from wild bear tribe. Because of those arrogant and prejudiced idiots, wild bear tribe 

had missed many things in the relics canyon this time. In the end, a series of major events happened in 

the Ice and Snow Wilderness. However, wild bear tribe could only watch on the sidelines silently as they 

let a good opportunity slip by, which could never be forgiven. 

For other small tribes, it was normal for such events to happen as they didn’t have the power to be 

involved. However, it was different for wild bear tribe. In the eyes of others, wild bear tribe was slow-

witted at making decisions. 



After Peter had come out for one day, iron bear tribe and wild bear tribe had already shown negativity 

towards him. 

’Is that guy really that powerful besides being able to manifest the God’s will?’ 

Gangula felt his heart racing. He knew it was just a beginning. After witnessing Zhang Tie’s manifestation 

of God’s will underground and the "truths" that Zhang Tie had declared, those saved by Peter would 

spread everywhere. No one could stop them from spreading. As a result, Peter’s influence in the 

medium and small sized tribes in the south of Ice and Snow Wilderness would gradually increase and 

finally reach an unimaginable level. 

If Peter were alone, wild bear tribe would still have the chance to conquer the entire Ice and Snow 

Wilderness. However, Peter had become the clan elder of huge bear tribe, and was the one in the 

prophecy of Elzida who would save all the Slavs and bring them to the brilliant road... 

Gangula suddenly oozed cold sweat all over at once. 

After a cold breeze came, Gangula shivered all over. He then recovered his composure and found that 

the army of huge bear tribe had long disappeared on the horizon in the distance. 

... 

"Go!" Gangula waved his hand weakly as he brought them back to the relics canyon. 

After the underground tunnel was dredged, there were still many valuables to be discovered in the 

relics. Therefore, they didn’t leave. The allied forces especially, which had lost many people, needed 

some valuables to "comfort" themselves for sure. However, there would not be as many people 

entering the tunnel compared to that of the previous time. 

Some of the pioneers left, and some didn’t. 

However, at this moment the most important thing for the warriors of the allied forces and the pioneers 

was not the possible wealth from the relics, but an altar, which could be used to serve the stone vats 

which had consecrated the God’s will. 

As per the requests of numerous people, Peter let Sabrina take away six of the seven stone vats, leaving 

one here so that people could commemorate and worship it. They agreed to build a magnificent altar in 

the relics canyon so that they could put that stone vat on it... 

70,000 to 80,000 people were excavating stones voluntarily and paving the ground, while some 

craftsmen among the allied forces and the pioneers were quarrelling loudly... 

... 

"Peter is a pioneer. Therefore, this altar should be built by our pioneers and constructed in our style!" 

"No way, Peter is the clan elder of huge bear tribe. He’s a Slav. Therefore, this altar should be built by us. 

How can it be handled by you outsiders!" 

"As we all know, Peter is a pioneer and a so-called ’outsider’ in your words. He was even wanted by your 

police. How can he be a Slav?" 



"Even though he wasn’t before, he is now..." said the craftsman of the allied forces seriously. "How 

could such a great person be a pioneer? Remarkably, being a pioneer was just his temporary status 

cover-up. In the myths, didn’t all the great people like Peter disguise themselves as shepherds, beggars 

or other humble civilians?" 

"Farce..." the pioneers became so agitated that they sprung up directly from the ground. They looked 

like they’d just been robbed of some jewellery. "Peter was a pioneer when he came to Ice and Snow 

Wilderness by Polar Light. He even had pioneer friends and partners..." 

... 

Hearing the quarrel between the craftsmen of the allied forces and those pioneers, Gangula frowned. 

He wanted to say something, but he couldn’t... 

... 

Two hours after the army of huge bear tribe had left the relics Canyon, Eschyle City received the news 

through a special channel about 1000 kilometers away and instantly became flurried. As a result, the 

whole city imposed a curfew in the daytime... 

Soon, the news was spread across Eschyle City... 

100,000 warriors of huge bear tribe are going to attack us... 

Chapter 483: Returning to Grey Eagle Tribe 

 

After leaving the relics canyon and crossing the river of Fitjar Estuary, the army of huge bear tribe had 

travelled over 500 kilometers before dusk. When they arrived at an expanse of wilderness over 30 

kilometers away from the grey eagle tribe, they finally rested there. 

It was really a rapid speed for an army of 100,000 soldiers to travel over 500 kilometers in a day across 

the Wilderness. 

Zhang Tie didn’t stay in the camp of the army. Instead, he led a group of xiphodon cavalrymen towards 

grey eagle tribe together with O’Laura and the cavalries from grey eagle tribe. 

Over one month ago, O’Laura had brought out 400 cavalries, 200 of which belonged to her while the 

other 200 belonged to Salem. However, more than 60 people had left the team, five of which were killed 

in the battle underground while the rest became Zhang Tie’s followers and had voluntarily left grey 

eagle tribe and O’Laura and moved towards grey hill... 

This time, many soldiers of the eastern tribes who joined the allied forces action became Zhang Tie’s 

followers. They gave everything that they had and chose an utterly different path. Almost one in six 

people from each tribe became Zhang Tie’s followers. 

Except for those who didn’t return to grey eagle tribe, the remaining 330 or so odd cavalries had nothing 

to do with Salem. After all they’d experienced, if the soldiers of grey eagle tribe still wanted to stay with 

Salem and his dad, they would be especially stupid. 



Before she left the tribe, O’Laura, Ollier and Juventus’ forces were in equilibrium in grey eagle tribe. 

However, the balance had been destroyed at this moment. 

Because of Zhang Tie’s words, ’You’re my mate, you don’t have to kneel down in front of me’, everyone 

simply knew that O’Laura was Zhang Tie’s woman. Additionally, Zhang Tie was the legendary clan elder 

of huge bear tribe. Naturally, O’Laura would become the woman of a clan elder. Within Ice and Snow 

Wilderness, such a woman was destined to be a duchess. If O’Laura was to have a child with Zhang Tie, 

the kid would be qualified as a ’childe’. 

Compared to O’Laura’s great status, the two elders of grey eagle tribe were only like wealthy 

countryside landlords. 

How could two countryside landlords match the duchess of a head of a bear tribe? 

Additionally, O’Laura’s reputation as Goddess Vat was definitely more influential than that of Ollier and 

Juventus in the tribes in the east of Ice and Snow Wilderness. They were not on the same level. 

Therefore, in this case, the most active one today was not the army of huge bear tribe, not Zhang Tie, 

not O’Laura, but Salem. While the army and the soldiers of grey eagle tribe took a rest, Salem kept 

galloping on his horse and rushed back to the base of grey eagle tribe. 

As a small tribe, grey eagle tribe had no expensive long-distance communicating device. In order to let 

his father prepare as early as possible and survive Ollier family, Salem had to explain the current 

situation clearly to his dad before O’Laura and Zhang Tie returned. 

As Ollier had wanted to kill Zhang Tie when Zhang Tie entered grey eagle tribe, Zhang Tie could easily 

sweep the whole Ollier clan, not to mention the conflict between Ollier and O’Laura. 

How intriguing it was! Nobody would have imagined that an Eschyle City wanted murder from over one 

month ago could become the clan elder of huge bear tribe and the very one in the prophecy of Elzida 

the great prophet. Salem felt that the whole Ollier clan was played by the God. 

Compared to Salem’s anxious emotions, the other soldiers of grey eagle tribe, including Setton, felt like 

they’d won a battle. 

Although this movement of allied forces had not reached grey eagle tribe and O’Laura’s target, 

compared to other tribes, even wild bear tribe, grey eagle tribe was already a big winner. O’Laura being 

the wife of the clan elder of huge bear tribe, to be honest, was definitely more valuable than receiving 

one or two million gold coins for grey eagle tribe. 

... 

With the ground-breaking boom caused by the hoofs of xiphodons, the contour of grey eagle tribe 

gradually appeared in front of everyone’s eyes. 

This time, Zhang Tie imagined that O’Laura would deal with the two old guys fiercely. However, when 

they arrived at the gate of grey eagle tribe, Zhang Tie’s illusion broke apart. 

Juventus and Ollier, who were arrogant previously, were kneeling outside the gate of grey eagle tribe 

with dozens of their family members, old and young. 



Among those people, the eldest were Juventus and Ollier while the youngest were four or five year-old 

kids. Because of their fear, the adults looked pale while the kids, being pressed onto the ground, were 

struggling and crying. 

It was already November, so in the evening the temperature declined sharply. Wearing an unlined 

garment, Juventus and Ollier, who had always lived noble lives, were quivering on the ground. What a 

poor situation! God knew how long had they been kneeling there. 

Salem was also kneeling among them. Beside him was a 30 year-old woman and two kids. One was 

about seven years old while the other was about four or five. When over 50 xiphodons in steel battle 

armor appeared in front of them, the kids were so scared that they forgot to even cry. Instead they kept 

clinging onto their parents’ arms while quivering. 

Right behind these people, almost all the residents of grey eagle tribe had already come out. Standing in 

the distance, they were staring in front of them with sophisticated and dubious looks. Why had the two 

elders become so weak, waiting to be slaughtered outside the gate of the tribe. 

Standing alone behind Juventus’ and Ollier’s families, Elder Merkel was staring at the guards on 

xiphodons with a worried look too. He didn’t know how Zhang Tie would deal with Juventus and Ollier. 

He didn’t even know whether Zhang Tie would punish him. After all, he had planted bone-exploding 

needles on Zhang Tie’s body. 

Under the majesty of huge bear tribe, small tribes like grey eagle tribe didn’t even stand a chance to 

struggle under the hoofs of the xiphodons. 

All the cavalries stopped 20 meters away. Seeing a priest standing there, Roslav and Waajid instantly 

locked onto priest Merkel. It seemed that they were going to pounce at priest Merkel as soon as he 

intended to move. 

Raising their heads, Juventus and Ollier glanced at Zhang Tie, who was riding on a handsome xiphodon. 

They were instantly scared by the dignified tri-color costume of the bear tribe’s clan elder as they 

lowered their heads again. Meanwhile, they started to quiver. 

Zhang Tie slowly moved closer on his xiphodon. He didn’t stop until the sharp tusk of the xiphodon 

almost touched Juventus and Ollier. Sitting atop the xiphodon, he then started to glance at the two old 

guys. 

When Juventus knelt down, his fat body almost shrunk into a ball. Although it was very cold now, his 

back was still wet all over with sweat. Even Ollier, who was always known for being aggressive, also 

dared not raise his head. He even dared not to argue. 

Recalling how the two old guys in front of him had looked over one month ago and how they looked 

now, Zhang Tie, riding on the xiphodon, closed his eyes as he started to taste the sweetness of power 

for the first time in his life. 

After opening his eyes once again, Zhang Tie glanced at the crowd behind the two people. After gazing 

at the three to five year old kids for a short while and the frightened women for another short while, 

Zhang Tie’s killing intent instantly disappeared. 



Finally he fixed his eyes on the two old guys, like he was watching two pieces of dried, pickled flesh. He 

then instantly felt bored. 

"Now that you know your faults, stand up!" Zhang Tie said calmly. 

After hearing this, Juventus and Ollier instantly raised their heads as they couldn’t even believe what 

they had heard. At this moment, Zhang Tie’s words were the most important to them. After exchanging 

glances at each other, Juventus and Ollier didn’t dare to continue kneeling down any more. They then 

struggled to stand up. 

Juventus’s legs might have been numb. The moment he picked himself up, he lost his balance and 

almost fell down on the ground once again. After standing up, Ollier also staggered. 

Following the two people in front, all their family members picked themselves up with confused looks 

on their faces. 

"Lord Peter, I..." Ollier wanted to say something. 

Zhang Tie was not interested in listening to him. Neither did he want to say anything. Instead, he shook 

the reins and drove his xiphodon away, closely followed by his guards and the cavalrymen of grey eagle 

tribe... 

Staring at Zhang Tie’s back with a confused look, Ollier and Juventus seemed unable to believe that 

Zhang Tie could let them go. However, many of the women behind them suddenly burst out in tears of 

relief... 

... 

In the evening, after taking off his armor and cleansing himself, Zhang Tie changed into a loose robe. He 

was inside a small building of Juventus silently staring at the night sky in the distance. 

The best house in the entire grey eagle tribe belonged to Juventus. Therefore, Juventus moved out 

together with his family members and left the best place to Zhang Tie and his guards. 

Based on Zhang Tie’s current status, it was really a great honor for grey eagle tribe to have Zhang Tie 

stay in their midst. Of course, they had to arrange the best house for Zhang Tie out of respect. 

It was already November. Almost four months had passed since the event in Heavens Cold City. Zhang 

Tie still remembered that important message that he’d received after the event in Heavens Cold City. ’If 

Zhen Clan’s plot had not been exposed by me, according to the analysis of Professor Simon, all the eggs 

of the puppet worms in Heavens Cold City might have hatched by next year. As a result, millions of 

people in Heavens Cold City would become terrifying zombies and killing machines under the control of 

puppet worms. If so, the whole Langya Prefecture of Jinyun Country would fall into chaos. The third holy 

war between humans and demons would break out.’ 

Although the plot was exposed, because the crisis caused by the demons had not been dissolved, Zhang 

Tie knew that the real holy war would arrive in two months at the latest. This holy war would be the 

longest, most severe winter ever experienced by the human race. 

’How are my friends in Blackhot City now?’ 



Zhang Tie remembered his friends, brothers and girlfriends in Blackhot City. A hint of sorrow flashed in 

his mind. 

No matter what, Zhang Tie had already decided he’d go back to Blackhot City after leaving the Ice and 

Snow Wilderness. 

At this moment, the door behind Zhang Tie was pushed open. Zhang Tie didn’t turn around. He knew 

who it was. 

After coming over to Zhang Tie, O’Laura tightly hugged him while pressing her face into his back. 

After a short while, Zhang Tie felt that his back was wet from O’Laura’s silent sobs. 

"It’s okay, it has all passed. Don’t cry..." Zhang Tie turned around and wiped the tears from O’Laura’s icy 

and delicate face. 

About one hour ago, Zhang Tie had already discovered the result of the conference of grey eagle tribe. 

Juventus and Ollier resigned from their positions as the tribal elders. They completely handed over their 

power to O’Laura. Besides this, Juventus even "donated" over 300,000 gold coins to grey eagle tribe. 

Ollier also urged his sons and trusted followers to vow to be loyal to O’Laura. O’Laura had officially 

become the tribal elder of grey eagle tribe. 

From today on, there was only one clan elder and one tribal elder in grey eagle tribe. 

All the conflicts in grey eagle tribe came to an end. The whole tribe was back in the hands of O’Laura. 

Before Zhang Tie could wipe off all the tears from O’Laura’s face, she hugged him tightly all of a sudden 

and started to kiss him madly, almost suffocating Zhang Tie. Finally, she pushed Zhang Tie directly onto 

the bed in the attic... 

... 

Setton and Zhang Tie’s other guards were alert downstairs... 

After more than ten minutes, Setton heard O’Laura’s muffled, painful groans from upstairs. He then 

immediately let out a sigh——that makes sense! 

Chapter 484: Spencer Clan (I) 

 

After the curfew was imposed in Eschyle City on November 6th, the whole city was shocked many times 

a day as the news about the army of the huge bear tribe was spread here constantly in the fastest 

speed. 

On the second day, although various news about the army of the huge bear tribe caused a great clamour 

in Eschyle City. What made most of the residents in Eschyle City more stunned were the various events 

happened in the former day. 

A pioneer called Peter became the clan elder of the huge bear tribe. 

The prophecy of the greatest Slavic prophet and pontiff came true. 



Before becoming the clan elder of the huge bear tribe, the pioneer called Peter saved tens of thousands 

of soldiers and pioneers of eastern allied forces and manifested God’s will for many times in the 

dilemma. 

Peter turned an average tin kettle into an endless sweet spring, which saved the lives of tens of 

thousands of people... 

All the wounds, after being touched by Peter’s hand, had healed... 

After the baptism of Peter, two powerful fighters even completed LV 2 sublimation at that moment... 

Peter also preached the immortal truth in the underground for tens of thousands of people... 

Being moved and aspired by the God’s will, tens of thousands of people became the followers of Peter... 

When these news were spread in Eschyle City, the whole city became clamorous like boiling oil in the 

pot. Although some news were spread through the people’s word of mouth, it lacked fidelity. Whereas, 

they covered a more sacred halos over Peter. 

At this moment, even no one could remember that the same guy called Peter was wanted by the police 

station over one month ago in the same city. 

As the army of the huge bear tribe drew closer, the whole Eschyle City became increasingly more 

intense while more and more hidden forces appeared. 

They were not common army of 100,000 soldiers, they were 100,000 elites from the huge bear tribe, 

among them, there were not only bear-killing camp, but also the most powerful xiphodon cavalries 

which were named as the Thor’s Hammer by Peter. What was more important, two elders and Pontiff 

Sarlin of the huge bear tribe also arrived. Although both the two elders were already knights, Pontiff 

Sarlin was more unpredictable. They were led by the very person in the prophecy of the greatest 

prophet and pontiff in the history of Slavs. 

After knowing these messages, commoners began gossiping about them; however, each member of 

Spencer Clan, especially the decision makers of the clan would feel a great stress. 

When the army of 100,000 warriors of the huge bear tribe left the Costari Plain, all the leaders of the 

bear tribes across Ice and Snow Wilderness started to become intense. 

Historically, all the bear tribes across Ice and Snow Wilderness were split from the huge bear tribe. 

Therefore, there was always a tribal chauvinism in the huge bear tribe, especially among the senior 

leaders of the huge bear tribe. There was always a tone that——the bear tribes should return all the 

tribes of Ice and Snow Wilderness to the huge bear tribe and realize the rejuvenation of Slavs once 

again. 

For the rulers of tribes, of course, this was hardly accepted. After being used to be a boss, they would 

feel unhappy to be others’ subordinates. Therefore, when the army of the huge bear tribe left Costari 

Plain, they started to be intense and prepared to defend. 

When the army of 100,000 warriors of the huge bear tribe headed for the the Haidela Glacier Crack in 

the south of Ice and Snow Wilderness, the rulers of Eschyle City let out a sigh and started to worry about 



the wild bear tribe. Some even expected to see the miserable outcome of those people in Haidela 

Glacier Crack. Unexpectedly, after being relaxed for a few days, they saw a sudden reversal. 

Peter became the clan elder of the huge bear tribe. After that, he led his army directly towards Eschyle 

City! 

The two events happened too fast, which left no time for Spencer clan to make any preparation. Hearing 

the army of 100,000 warriors of the huge bear tribe rolling towards Eschyle City, the iron bear tribe 

became flurried... 

No one thought that Peter was here for a travel or walk. 

Facing such a situation, under the great stress, all the decision makers of Spencer clan had to negotiate 

about the countermeasures around a table. 

... 

On the evening of November 8th, all the big figures in Eschyle City gathered in the assembly hall of the 

iron bear castle of Eschyle City. 

Under the magnificent and luxurious high-end crystal lamps, the gleaming marble floor even made the 

assembly hall as magnificent a as palace. Due to the curfew, even a mosquito could not fly in within 50 

square meters, 

As major figures had to discuss and determine about the fate of Spencer clan and the major events of 

Eschyle City in the future, the confidentiality of the assembly hall was very high. This was absolutely a 

closed room without any window. No one else except for the members of Spencer clan could enter. 

If Zhang Tie arrived here, he would be able to find the great difference between Spencer clan and the 

rulers of the other tribes in Ice and Snow Wilderness. None of the members of Spencer clan in the 

assembly hall were barbarous at all. All those here were wearing exquisite western coat or uniforms 

with well-combed hair. If not that huge metal emblem which represented the iron bear tribe on one 

wall, there conference looked nothing different than the board of directors of big business groups. 

At this moment, this fully closed place was like a steaming pressure cooker. As the conference 

continued, an intense atmosphere started to spread each nook of the assembly hall... 

Just now, all the members of Spencer clan heard the cause of the two wanted circulars about Peter 

Hamplester delivered by the police station in Eschyle City from the police chief Hellno. 

After hearing the report, the assembly hall became quiet once again. 

Hellno was the third son of Tilin Spencer and the most powerful wolf of Spencer clan in ruling Eschyle 

City. 

After hearing the report, Tilin Spencer glanced at his third son and all the other silent audience, before 

opening his mouth in a muffled voice. 

"Now that this event has been solved well, why would Peter still attack Eschyle City at any risk!" 



Although Tilin intended to protect his own son, the other members of Spencer clan didn’t express any 

dissatisfaction about that. Because Tilin was right. Unless Peter was a lunatic or idiot, he would never 

launch a war at such a great cost. 

Obviously, a lunatic and idiot could not manifest the God’s will. Even the legendary God’s will was 

fabricated, he could never cheat hundreds of thousands of people without a high intelligence quotient 

and smart methods. A lunatic and idiot could never be the clan elder of the huge bear tribe and survive 

so long while being chased by people from demon snake island. As long as the three elders of the huge 

bear tribe were not blind, they would never allow a lunatic and idiot to lead the army of 100,000 

warriors towards here. 

"What if the huge bear tribe had the plan to attack Eschyle City? What if Peter is just their puppet and 

excuse? This might be a performance led by the huge bear tribe. They pushed an average brat onto the 

throne and used him to unify the Ice and Snow Wilderness!" a member of Spence clan posed it seriously 

after thinking for a long while. 

After hearing this, everyone was shocked. It was really possible. However, the other members of 

Spencer clan also posed different opinions. 

"The prophecy of Elzida is very sacred in the huge bear tribe. They have been believing in this prophecy 

for hundreds of years. This is their spiritual belief. If someone wanted to do that in the huge bear tribe, 

he would be immediately opposed by Pontiff Sarlin. Additionally, if the huge bear tribe had long 

intended to conquer Eschyle City, they would not only assign 100,000 cavalries. At least, there should be 

a great quantity of infantries. Additionally, they had to carry enough instruments and weapons. 

However, according to our intelligence, no weapon or instrument was carried by the army of 100,000 

warriors of the huge bear tribe at all. 

"Perhaps, it’s just a small trick. Gouras and Toles will be easy to deal with. If they have made enough 

preparations the moment they left Costari Plain, we would know what they want to do then. If so, we 

would make enough preparations to counterattack! Additionally, If they want to conquer Eschyle City, 

they don’t have to attack it; instead, they could only surround it so that we would fight them outside the 

city!" 

Hearing utterly different opinions in the assembly hall, they started to argue with each other loudly until 

Tilin coughed twice. 

"Wuli, what’s the final outcome if we could fight the army of 100,000 warriors of the huge bear tribe?" 

The clan elder of Spencer clan asked a major in military uniform solemnly... 

Chapter 485: Spencer Clan (II) 

 

In this age, major general was already the head of an army. Although no military ranking system was 

executed in other tribes in Ice and Snow Wilderness, Spencer clan which, due to frequent contact with 

the outside world and they treated as the represent of advanced civilization among all Slavic tribes. They 

had intergrated themselves with numerous countries on continent. 



The man inquired by Tilin was over 50 years old. He was the bloodtied younger brother of Tilin, the head 

of Spencer clan. For many people reaching LV 10, this age was just as young as 20-old teenagers. The 

golden time in their lives just started. 

Wuli Spencer took good care of his skin as he didn’t have any wrinkles at all. Also, his hair was black and 

shiny. From his look, he must have been used to a dignified life. Additionally, the cyan military uniform 

which represented the highest rank in Eschyle City made him majestic. Since 20 years old, Wuli Spencer 

had already been known as a very handsome man in Eschyle City. His gossips were spread all over the 

Eschyle City. 

After hearing the inquiry of the head, everybody threw their glances at Wuli. Facing this second 

powerful figure in Spencer clan, many people’s eyes were mixed with flattery. 

Hearing Tilin’s question, Wuli slowly opened his mouth after carefully thinking about it for half a minute. 

"If we fight 100,000 warriors of huge bear tribe, we would face the same outcome..." the moment Wuli 

finished his words, many people were slightly stunned, ’how can that be?’ 

Wuli glanced at them as his muffled masculine voice sounded once again, "Based on the force of Eschyle 

City, this city’s base would be at least completely destroyed if we have to fight the 100,000 elites of 

huge bear tribe. We could never deal with their counterattack or challenges from other tribes. Even 

though all the warriors of huge bear tribe were killed, they could soon mobilize another army of 100,000 

warriors on Costari Plain. If so, how do we block them?" 

Hearing this possible outcome, everyone felt a heavy burden. 

"As the most powerful tribe in Ice and Snow Wilderness, huge bear tribe could mobilize at least 600,000 

warriors, which is similar to an army group. However, Eschyle City could mobilize 250,000 soldiers at 

most, which were two armies. Therefore, we are not able to fight huge bear tribe at all. Additionally, no 

tribe in Ice and Snow Wilderness could fight huge bear tribe independently." Wuli continued to explain. 

"Can we diffuse this crisis with the help of wild bear tribe?" someone suggested. 

"No way. The old guy in wild bear tribe might even be waiting for the battle between us and huge bear 

tribe like how we did when the army of 100,000 warriors of huge bear tribe headed for the southern 

part of Ice and Snow Wilderness several days ago. God bless us if the old guy doesn’t set us up!" 

The moment the members of Spencer clan recalled the barbarious clan elder of wild bear tribe who was 

like a butcher, they felt a headache. As the clan elder of iron bear clan which ruled Eschyle City, Markov 

had criticized Spencer clan as the "fox in bear hide" and "iron tortoise with the stink of money". 

Therefore, the relationship between wild bear tribe and Eschyle City was always stiff. It was almost 

impossilbe to expect to collaborate with wild bear tribe at this moment. 

"Where’s fire bear tribe. Could they give us a favor or not?" 

Tilin’s elder female cousin was the wife of the clan elder of fire bear tribe. The two tribes had a very 

close relationship. Therefore, after hearing that wild bear tribe could not give a favor, someone instantly 

remembered fire bear tribe. 



"Fire bear tribe is over 5000 km away from us. Additionally, fire bear tribe doesn’t have so many 

cavalries. The clan elder has already contacted with the fire bear tribe a couple of days ago. The fire bear 

tribe have already dispatched 10,000 cavalries towards Eschyle City. However, as it is a long way, they 

have to pass the Caucasian Mountain Range and could not arrive here until one month later. If they 

dispatch over 100,000 infantries towards here, it would be one month later than cavalries do!" 

A person at Tilin’s right hand explained it to the others. 

’One month? The army of huge bear tribe would arrive at Eschyle City in four days. You tell me the 

cavalries of fire bear tribe would arrive in one month? Additionally, facing the 100,000 cavalries of huge 

bear tribe, the effect of the 10,000 cavalries from fire bear tribe is still unknown.’ 

Everyone became flurried but they didn’t complain about it. Because they all knew that it was already 

very good that fire bear tribe could give them a favor this time, as the bill had to be paid by Eschyle City. 

After discussing about various countermeasures, they found that the basic problem facing Eschyle City 

was that huge bear tribe had the power to play the same game 2 or 3 times; however, Spencer clan 

could only barely play it one time. 

Therefore, clan elder Tilin set the tone directly. They had to figure out Peter’s real target and tried to 

avoid the potential war. Even though some crazy guys in huge bear tribe would like to unify Ice and 

Snow Wilderness by force, Eschyle City had to try itself to avoid from becoming the first target of huge 

bear tribe. 

These people at present were all elites out of 10,000 members of Spencer clan on both intelligence 

quotient and vision. Through discussion, they soon proposed various reasons and possibilities of the war 

along with countermeasures. 

"What if Peter doesn’t have any reason. He might just want to let his army make a travel around Eschyle 

City?" a voice appeared in the assembly hall. The moment it was heard, the whole assembly hall became 

quiet at once. After that, they threw their glances towards that member of Spencer clan. 

It was Neymar Spencer, who was reaponsible for the propaganda and public opinions of Eschyle City. 

Concretely, he was only responsible for two newspapers and many troubadours who only knew how to 

seduce lonely women by boasting in the receptions and salons of Eschyle City. Such a figure could be 

ignored in Spencer clan. However, as it was an important conference of Spencer clan, big figures in all 

aspects needed to negotiate about major events here; therefore, he was also invited. 

Perhaps because he had been responsible for propaganda and public opinions for too long, his mindest 

was always radioactive. Sometimes, he absolutely indulged in wildest fantasy. In this way, people could 

not catch up with his mind. 

Under the weird gaze of the other members of Spencer clan, Neymar became a bit tense as he 

swallowed his words back. 

"Don’t worry, Neymar, tell me about you certificate?" clan elder Tilin encouraged Neymar to explain it 

after hearing Neymar absurd conclusion after frowning his forehead. 

Being encouraged by clan elder, after thinking it for a while, he explain it in a calm way. 



"No matter Peter manifested the God’s will underground or did anything amazing, as huge bear tribe 

suddenly appeared in front of him and told him that he was the very person in Elzida’s prophecy and 

wanted him to be the clan elder of huge bear tribe, he must be dubious about that. Everyone would 

doubt that if it fell on themselves. He might worry about being cheated; therefore he wants to have a 

try." 

"Have a try?" clan elder Tilin gazed at Neymar with meaningful and dubious eyes, "What do you mean 

by having a try?" 

"I mean he just wants to have a try whether he could command the 100,000 warriors of huge bear tribe. 

If the 100,000 warriors could follow his order, even when his order was a bit absurd, he would know 

that huge bear tribe don’t cheat on him. If not, he could figure out that it was a plot!" 

Neymar’s words shocked everyone in the assembly hall. Although they were discussing about various 

plots and tricks, nobody seriously considered this event on the stance of Peter. Therefore, after Neymar 

posed it, although being very absurd, it felt reasonable. 

"Right, Neymar; you’re right. We’ve ignored this point. If it is truely as you think, what do you think the 

army of huge bear tribe would do after it?" Tilin asked. 

"If it’s true, I’m afraid that the army of huge bear tribe will turn around after drawing close to Eschyle 

City and go back!" Neymar put it straight, "Actually, I fell you ignored another possibility!" 

"Another possibility?" 

"Right, the one leading 100,000 warriors of huge bear tribe towards Eschyle City is neither Peter nor 

those crazy tribal chauvinists, but someone else!" 

"Someone else? How come? Do you think it’s that someone could mobilize 100,000 warriors by just 

moving his mouth? It’s not as easy as writing your paper." soon after Neymar finished his words, some 

contenders instantly sneered him as he arouse Tilin’s attention. 

"What if that person is the great Pontiff Elzida?" 

The moment Neymar posed this, the whole assembly hall became quiet at once. 

"Based on our intelligence, before setting out the army, Peter had already opened that key box left by 

Elzida. There was only one letter in the box. Peter was the only person who had read it. Attention! After 

Peter opened that box for a few hours, huge bear tribe started to surge towards Eschyle City. Dare you 

say it was not related to the letter?" Neymar raised his voice. 

"Why would Elzida do that?" 

"How could we guess the decision of Elzida, a person who could observe the future? If it was true, Elzida 

might have already seen events in Eschyle City. Therefore, he dispatched the army of huge bear tribe 

here for the most proper preparations and disposal. Elzida had done many things like this in his life, 

many of which looked absurd and unpredictable; however, all that he had done helped Slavs out of 

crisis. Right because of this, he became the greatest prophet and pontiff in the eyes of Slavs!" 

Everyone became silent. Compared to the first reason, this reason was more shockingg——Elzida still 

had a magical power for each one in Ice and Snow Wilderness until today. 



If Elzida truly left some premonition in the key box, what a major event would happen in Eschyle City 

that could worth 100,000 warriors of huge bear tribe’s arrival? 

In Slavic history, not until the moment the fate of the whole Slavs was influenced, Elzida would not 

expose the future that he had seen and made preparations for that. Right because Elzida had done 

many similiar things, he had saved the lives of Slavs for many times. Whereas, as he had leaked too 

many events in the future, his longevity was reduced according to the time rule. He passed away at the 

age of 60-odd years old. 

The great prophet and pontiff shaped a great image in the heart of all the Slavs. The great image was 

still threatening now. 

When Neymar posed the first presumption, all the others sneered him; however, after hearing his 

second presumption, the assembly hall immediately cooled down. 

All the Spencers became silent as they felt very restless. 

If Neymar’s first presumption was right, they didn’t have to do anything but to wait for the crisis to 

diffuse by itself. If the second presumption was right, the Spencers should discuss about how to 

coordinate with huge bear tribe to eliminate the crisis as soon as possible. Therefore, Spencers should 

not resist the 100,000 warriors; instead, they should welcome them. 

What absurd! They were discussing about how to respond to this crisis just now; however, in a wink, 

everything changed. 

In that abnormal silence, that person who had been silent since he entered the assembly hall became 

more eye-attractive. He slightly frowned his forehead before glancing at a people at the end of the 

conference table, who was lowering his head and shrugging his shoulders silently with a disatisfied look. 

"Pears, you’re also a member of Spencer clan, tell me about your opinion!" 

After hearing Tilin’s words, all the Spencers threw their glances at that guy who was almost ignored by 

others. At the sight of that poor, frustrating look, many people twitched their mouth corners, which 

seemed like a a polite smile, yet was actually an contemption. 

Compared to Tilin and Wuli, who was the most shiny stars in Spencer clan, Pears was as trivial as a 

broken sofa being thrown into a warehouse. Additionally, he smelt mouldy. It was really unbelievable 

that he could compete for the clan elder with Tilin dozens of years ago. 

That man called Pears raised his fat face with his two frustrated eyes and evidently big eye bags due to 

excessive drinks and sexual intercourse. At the sight of him, everyone signed inside. 

After being called by the clan elder, the one woke up from fatigueness. 

"Ah...clan elder is right. Now that Peter is a lascivious guy and could even have such a special 

relationship with that loose woman in wild bear tribe, we..only need to send him some women. Then, 

everything would be solved. I follow your opinions, I follow your opinions..." 

Whilst hearing Pears repeating the former topic that they were discussing about twenty minutes ago, 

everyone became speechless. 



Chapter 486: Spencer Clan (III) 

 

One hour later, all the Spencer elites walked out of the assembly hall with a solemn look. 

Clan elder Tilin had already made the decision that an elder would go to communicate with Peter and 

some elders of the huge bear tribe with the "sincerity" from Eschyle City tomorrow. 

No matter what, they had to figure out the purpose of huge bear tribe before deciding to fight or seek 

for peace. 

The army of the huge bear tribe was still over 500 km away. However, for the elite cavalries of huge 

bear tribe, it would only take them a couple of days to arrive at Eschyle City. 

Being influenced by some messages or gossips, of course the so-called "sincerity" referred to the 

beautiful women of Spencer clan. This was the right moment for those women to sacrifice for their own 

clan. The clan elder only needed to take the selected woman over there. If Peter was truly lascivious, 

Spencer’s woman had many methods to display their value in maintaining the clan’s interests. This was 

what each Spencer woman learned since they were young. 

In Ice and Snow Wilderness, each woman of the ruling clan, especially the women in the bear clans 

always used to maintain the clan’s ruling by fulfilling men. This was not a secret at all. Except for the 

huge bear tribe which had no clan elder before, each tribe did this as they didn’t think it was shameless 

at all. 

For Spencer clan, when the other tribes’ ruling clans were still using women as the primitive yet 

effective tool of inter-marriage, Spencer clan had long realized a "deep-processing" about this tool. Each 

woman of Spencer clan, since they were 6-7 years old, had already started to learn a lot of professional 

courses. 

Besides common courses which could accumulate one’s personality, music, dance, poem, painting, 

makeup, etiquette, inter-personal relationship, style of conversation, psychology and stratagem were all 

their compulsory courses. When they were 14 years old, they had already started to learn how to please 

men. 

Spencer clan invited real experts from the continent to carry out systematic education and training for 

these women. Those who taught them etiquette were court advisers from imperialism countries on the 

continent. Those who taught them how to please men were "famous prostitutes" who had already 

retired. Those who taught them inter-personal relationship were experienced diplomats and famous 

courtesans that were invited by Spencer clan at high costs. Those who taught them psychology and 

stratagem were real expert scholars and excellent people in all industries. 

Under the intoxication of such a great education system, "Spencer Woman" even became a exclusive 

term across Ice and Snow Wilderness. In the tribes of Ice and Snow Wilderness, even in Eschyle City, if a 

neighbor pointed at some woman and said she was a "Spencer Woman", he was definitely speaking 

highly of her as Spencer women were all beautiful, shrewd, able and knew how to seduce men. 

... 



Pears was the last one leaving the assembly hall. Even the younger generations of Spencer clan felt 

disgusting about him. Therefore, nobody glanced at him at all when he walked out, not to mention to 

greet him or leave Iron Bear Castle together with him. 

When the other people left in a group of 2 or 3, Pears slowly walked behind them as he yawned. He 

came to the parking lot. After foisting his fat body into the back seat of a sedan which was imported 

from Eastern Continent, he ordered the driver to leave Iron Bear Castle. 

Iron Bear Castle of Spencer clan was the standard mansion for clan elders. Only the current elder was 

qualified to live in it. Even the sons and daughters of the clan elder were not qualified to live in it after 

they grew mature. Therefore, after the conference, all the elites of Spencer clan left here except for 

Tilin. 

Of course, in the eyes of the other Spencer elites, they could pleasantly accept the reputation of "clan 

elites". However, if someone described someone else as the clan elite, he might be sneered. 

Before completely leaving the Iron Bear Castle, those guardians outside the gate of Iron Bear Castle had 

already seen Pears taking out a bottle of senior gin from the gradevin beside the back seat, making a full 

cup for himself... 

After drinking a cup of gin, Pears blushed and looked a bit more spirited. 

At this moment, due to curfew, the entire Eschyle City became quiet. One week ago, the whole city was 

still brightly-lit all over in the evening. By contrast, soon after dusk, the city had already been in a deadly, 

silent darkness. Due to lack of vehicles, all the streets looked open. Therefore, Pears’ car flashed on the 

streets. 

His car soon drew close to his residence, from where the road was blocked temporarily. The police had 

gathered here. 

The sedan parked. Pears rolled down the window and showed half of his fat face. He looked at that 

police head who was lowering his body to explain it to Pears. 

Of course, this police head knew Pears. No matter how trivial Pears’ position was in Spencer clan, Pears 

could not be offended by such a small police head. 

"What happened?" Pears asked in a muffled, weak voice. 

The small head raised his arm towards his subordinate to move away the roadblock as he explained, 

"Mr. Pears, someone brushed some slogans on the roadside walls in the evening. After receiving the 

report, we especially come here to manage it!" 

These days, all the heads of the Eschyle Police Station were sworn heavily by their superiors. Certainly, 

none of them dared to make any mistake at this critical moment. Therefore, soon after receiving the 

report, a great number of policemen arrived here. 

"You idiots, piss off..." Pears swore them impatiently while waving his hand like chasing flies. Closely 

after that, he rolled up the window. 

When the car passed by the roadside walls, Pears saw the painted slogans in red. 



The Lord in the prophecy of the Great Prophet Elzida has appeared! 

It’s time for Slavs to unify the Ice and Snow Wilderness. 

Even after hundreds of years, as long as there were Slavs in Ice and Snow Wilderness, there were always 

crazy fans and followers of Elzida and some Calvinism Slavs who always dreamed about rejuvenating all 

the tribes. Although these minorities were not able to rebel, they could stir up troubles at the critical 

moment. 

After a short while, the two slogans had already been covered by the same red paint. 

When he saw the name "Elzida", Pears tightened his right fist before loosing it and reaching towards the 

gradevin like nothing had happened. 

"Pah..." seeing off Pears’ vehicle, that small police head spat a mouth of saliva towards the back of the 

vehicle... 

... 

After a few minutes, the sedan returned to the luxurious villa which occupied a wide area of territory. 

The bodyguards opened the gate for him. After that, Pears had his car driven in the courtyard. 

After getting off the vehicle, Pears looked gloomier. 

Looking at the well-pruned evergreen trees in the parterre, Pears sent the steward to bring the 

gardener. He then lost his temper towards that gardener and ordered steward to deduct this month’s 

salary of the gardener and lay him off. After that, he entered the villa furiously. 

After half an hour, glass breaking sounds and roars drifted out of the villa at the same time along with 

the sobs of female servants who were slapped. The whole villa was in a terrifying atmosphere until Pears 

entered the study room. 

After the door of the study room was shut up, Pears recovered his composure completely, causing a 

tranquility in the villa. 

After sitting on the sofa calmly for 2 minutes, Pears stood up and came to the front of the fireplace. He 

twisted the button inside the fireplace using a pair of fire-tongs to open a wall silently beside the 

fireplace, exposing a dark tunnel leading to the underground. 

After putting back the fire-tongs, Pears entered the tunnel. Closely after that, the wall returned to its 

original place. 

The dim fluorite lamps made the basement greenish. It seemed to be an icehouse as it was piled with 

huge ice cubes. Each ice cube was glittering and translucent like super huge crystals while radiating dark 

blue luster. 

Experts could identify that these were not common ice cubes, but aged ones. They had been preserved 

in this state for over 1 million years. They were harder than steel and iron and would not easily melt. 

The cost of each piece of such kind of ice cube was equal to that of the same weight of gold. 



On the bed, which was carved on a huge aged ice cube, was lying a 15 or 16 year-old teenager with his 

hands crossed onto his abdomen quietly like being asleep... 

Chapter 487: Paternal Love 

 

Pears watched the asleep teenager with a benign and tender look. Moreover, he combed the hair on the 

forehead of the teenager carefully. 

The teenager’s face was as white as snow and he looked dead. At this time, Pears’ kind look and action 

gave people a creepy feeling. 

After a few time, the steward appeared on Pears’ side. 

Although Pears looked tender after entering the study room, the steward who looked kind and elegant 

outside immediately became gloomy and lofty the moment he entered. 

The green fluorite lamps left a gloomy shadow on their faces, which made the whole underground more 

terrifying. 

"What’s the result of Spencer’s conference?" The steward asked in a aggressive and paramount manner. 

"There’s a very bad news. Our plan might have been recognized by someone!" Pears’voice was very 

calm, which was sharply constructive to that humble look in assembly hall, "The army of 100,000 

warriors of huge bear tribe might be heading for us?" 

After hearing Pears’words, the steward instantly responded with an amazed look, "You mean our trap in 

the relics was discovered and huge bear tribe followed the clue here? How can that be..." The steward 

urged as he waved his head, "After that powerful huge alchemist’s bomb exploded, everything would be 

ruined. What else would be left? The three-eye association spent a lot of time and resources for this 

plan in order to attract the other tribes’ attention. Even our animal controllers were killed." 

"It’s not our mistake. Someone might know our plan!" 

"Who?" The steward’s voice became gloomy at once. He stared at Pears and put it straight, "Now there 

is such a person, why haven’t anyone killed him? Why do you come back now? Such a person should die 

as soon as possible for our safety. 

"But that man might be Elzida!" Pears replied with a muffled voice. 

"Who?" The steward became dumbfounded. 

"The great prophet of Slavs, Elzida!" Pears explained. He also added, "Elzida left a letter to Peter in the 

key box. He might mention what would happen in Eschyle City in the letter. Therefore, he told huge bear 

tribe to respond to it in advance." 

Of course, the steward knew who was Elzida. After hearing Pears’ explanation, his face changed, "Are 

you sure?" 



"Not sure. After discussion, we found many possibilities. In a conclusion, the predominate powers 

behind it might come from three aspects. First, it’s reasonable for some crazy men or tribal calvinists in 

huge bear tribe to launch an attack; however, their preparations are not sufficient!" 

"Second, Peter might want to check his ruling power in huge bear tribe by launching the attack. The 

troop of huge bear tribe might come back reaching Eschyle City. Certainly, we need to consider about 

the marvellous events that Peter has down in that underground relics. Peter might have other plan on 

setting out the troop of huge bear tribe. If this man could truly manifest the so-called God’s will when he 

was also in the trap, he might have discovered something. You know that, some regions are always 

unpredictable in this world..." 

"Lastly based on Elzida’s superb ability, he might have already seen what happened in Eschyle City in 

future. Therefore, he left a letter so that huge bear tribe could respond to it properly!" 

Hearing Pear’s expressionless tone, the steward’s facial muscles twisted painfully. That was caused by 

fury, hatred or a bit frustration. After Elzida died hundreds of years, nobody knew his ability better than 

three-eye association. 

When this person was alive, he managed all the plots of three-eye association towards Slvas. Hundreds 

of years ago, Elzida cleaned all the politicians and lackeys of three-eyes association lurking in the Slavic 

clans in aggressive and bloody manner, causing a great loss to the three-eye association. Even though 

now, three-eye association still hadn’t recovered his vitality and influence among Slavs. Few Slavs could 

be absorbed by three-eye association. Therefore, the entire Ice and Snow Wilderness became the 

vacuum territory of the power of three-eye association. 

Three-eye association had already spent a lot in absorbing Pears. Their plan would succeed in a few 

months after over two decades. Unexpectedly, that guy, who had died for hundreds of years, suddenly 

reappeared. 

Perhaps, the Spencers were still a bit dubious when they heard about Elzida. However, as long as the 

name "Elzida" appeared in their plot towards Slavs, he targeted at three-eye association for sure. 

The steward looked as terrifying and grim as a devil as he was covered with rolling black battle-qi totem. 

However, he surpressed it forcefully. Given the rolling battle-qi totem, the steward was at least a LV 10 

powerhouse. 

"Perhaps, the true situation is not that worse. This is just a presumption!" Pears said calmly. 

"I know, of course it is not the worst scenario. Even though it was Elzida. he could not see all the events 

and details in the future. Otherwise, they only need to dispatch a knight towards Eschyle City, instead of 

an army of 100,000 warriors!" 

Pears became silent as he threw his sights towards that teenager once again. 

The steward also became silent as his eyes glittered weirdly. It seemed that he was struggling inside... 

After the basement recovered its tranquility for a short while... 

"Pears..." the steward called him calmly and kindly. 



Pears raised his head and stared at the steward, seemingly that he had already predicted what would 

the steward say, "Are you going to launch an attack in advance? If we wait for another 3 months, 

everything would be different." 

"We cannot wait any longer. When the army of huge bear tribe arrive, all that we’ve done might be 

meaningless. If so, we will lose everything. We cannot hand over the initiative to others. Now, we still 

have the ability to arise a chaos in Eschyle City. However, after a couple of days, we might be stranded 

fish!" 

Pears also sighed as he touched the stiff face of that teenager, "Do you know why would I like to 

collaborate with you?" 

The steward became hesitated for a second, "Only our three-eye association could bring a new birth to 

young master. As long as young master’s body is well preserved, when our army arrive at Ice and Snow 

Wilderness, we will complete rebirth and clone for young master using his cells..." 

"But, will he be the same little Hellfire? By then, I will be worthless for you to do that..." Pears waved his 

head with a sorrowful tone, "I collaborate with you because I only want to let Spencers know that they 

have to pay for what they did. This clan should belong to my little Hellfire. If he is alive, he should have 

become the clan elder. Although I could not match Tilin, my kid is more excellent than any of his sons. 

However, the accident happened to the most excellent person when he was executing the clan mission. 

However, those average people live shamelessly. Now that little Hellfire is dead, the Spencer clan could 

not die. It’s meaningless for such a corrupted clan to exist! 

"You..." the steward was surprised. He felt heartache at once. He lowered his head and found a black 

long sword had been penetrated through his heart by the very humble man, whom he thought having 

been under his full control. 

’He had a sword? How come that be?’ 

’He attacked me by sword? Yet, I don’t feel that until being striken?’ 

’What’s that swordsmanship? Is that the very humble and incompetent man who only knew about 

drinking? 

The fresh blood flew out of the steward’s mouth. He widely opened his eyes as he stared at that man’s 

fat body and loose sleeves. He seemed understanding something. However, as his strength and vitality 

disappeared rapidly, he didn’t even have the strength to utter the last words although he opened his 

mouth. 

"Now that I will die and meet my little Hellfire, why do you live? Do you know that as a Slav, I actually 

hate you b*stards of three-eye association very much." Pears said as he drew out of the long sword and 

chopped off his head. Meanwhile, the headless corpse fell down. 

The whole basement was filled with blood at once. A drop of fresh blood even sprayed onto that 

teenager’s face. Pears took out a snow-white handkerchief and wiped off that drop of fresh blood. After 

that, he lowered his body and kissed his forehead before revealing a regretful smile. 



"Little Hellfire. Look, your dad is really old. I cannot even kill a person tidily. Sorry for the blood. If you 

are still alive, you must be sharper than your dad. Wait for a few days. After your dad finishes that, I will 

bring more people here to accompany you. By then, you would not feel cold and lonely any longer..." 

Chapter 488: Zhang Tie’s Plan 

 

On November 9th, after many days of long-range raid, the army of 100,000 warriors of huge bear tribe 

were finally less than 1000 km away from Eschyle City. For the tribes in Ice and Snow Wilderness. If 

100,000 warriors were less than 1000 km away from their core, with cavalries’ speed, this distance was 

already suitable for the two tribes to fight. 

Its distance had already reached the cordons of most tribes. It meant the two tribes would fight very 

soon. 

Although the greater part of the army of huge bear tribe was still about 1000 km away from Eschyle City, 

the vanguard of the army was already less than 400 km away from the Sciatta town in the west of 

Eschyle City. 

At this moment, Zhang Tie had already confirmed that Elzida didn’t cheat him. The whole huge bear 

tribe was Elzida’s gift to him. Everyone across the huge bear tribe, including the most common warriors 

and big figures like Sarlin Pontiff had paid enough tribute to him, a guy who was doomed to the clan 

elder of huge bear tribe. Each of his orders was very absurd and required a high cost of huge bear tribe, 

could be implemented resolutely. 

Take this time as an example, his original intention of ordering the huge bear tribe to set out towards 

Eschyle City had been hit by Neymar. Zhang Tie really wanted to confirm his ruling authority towards 

huge bear tribe. If Elzida’s prophecy had lost its sacred influence in huge bear tribe, Zhang Tie would not 

waste time on those people who treated him as a puppet. 

Elzida wanted him to take responsibility for the future of huge bear tribe. Therefore, Zhang Tie firstly 

should confirm whether huge bear tribe was worth for him to be responsible for. Otherwise, the 

prophecy of great prophet and pontiff was just a mad old man’s illusion which could not restrict him at 

all. He didn’t think that he owed Elzida or Slavs. He had not reached any agreement or made any 

promise with anyone. Therefore, he didn’t have to take responsibility for the future of Ice and Snow 

Wilderness. 

If he had to take responsibility for that, Zhang Tie felt that his responsibility for O’Laura and Sabrina 

might be greater than that for all the Slavs. 

According to Zhang Tie’s plan, if he could really take over huge bear tribe, he would stop the army and 

return his army northward to the base of huge bear tribe when they arrived at the small town Sciatta. If 

so, this action was just an armed cruise. If huge bear tribe was not worthwhile for him to do that, he 

would leave Ice and Snow Wilderness directly from Eschyle City by boat and return to Blackhot City. 

Zhang Tie had already delivered the order to stop when the vanguard of his army reached the small 

town Sciatta. They would wait there until the great part of the army arrived. Based on the current 

marching speed, the greater part of allied forces would arrive at Sciatta Town by the evening of the day 



after tomorrow. After resting one day near the Sciatta Town, the army would turn around and return to 

the base of huge bear tribe. 

... 

After exiting the underground relics for a few days, Zhang Tie could obviously feel that the temperature 

of Ice and Snow Wilderness gradually declined. The north wind became increasingly chilly. The Ice and 

Snow Wilderness was going to enter winter. 

After pitching the camp last night, Zhang Tie directly came to the camp of Thor’s Hammer for an 

investigation. 

Zhang Tie was very curious about xiphodons. After several days’ contact, Zhang Tie found that this 

animal was born to be ridden. Although it might not be the strongest beast for riding, at least it was the 

best and strongest one that Zhang Tie had ever seen. 

Xiphodon was the most comfortable one with the highest speed and the best endurance that Zhang Tie 

had ever seen. Additionally, it could carry the heaviest burden. According to his subordinate, in certain 

rigorous environment, xiphodon could cooperate with the cavalry in fighting for one week without 

eating or drinking. What an amazing ability. 

Xiphodon could run at a speed of about 120 km/h. Common xiphodons could carry above 1500 kg in 

battle. Plus its own weight of more than 4 tons for an adult. A xiphodon could also break everything 

except for the city wall at a speed of 100 km/h. 

If not considering the speed of the greater part of the army, Thor’s Hammer had already reached 

Eschyle City yesterday. 

In the camp of Thor’s Hammer, the cavalries were loading off the battle armor for their own xiphodons. 

Many cavalries were busy feeding and watering xiphodons and combing fur for them before eating 

themselves. Seeing those though guys taking care of xiphodons so patiently, Zhang Tie bet they would 

never take care of their women at home. 

For cavalries of Thor’s Hammer, xiphodons were not only for riding, but their brothers, partners and 

family members. For most of cavalries, as xiphodons could live long, they could befriend one or two 

xiphodons at most in their whole life. Therefore, they especially treasured their partner. 

"What’s that?" He saw some cavalries throwing purple pies into a xiphodon’s mouth and the xiphodon 

enjoying it, Zhang Tie walked over there out of curiosity. 

When he didn’t disguise, Zhang Tie looked like a commoner. He liked to stay with his subordinates and 

warriors very much. When he was in Blapei, Zhang Tie, as a small official of Logistics Department who 

had rich payment, always stayed in the vehicle maintenance workshop with those repairmen. He always 

drilled in and out of the chassis of vehicles. Although being covered with oil, he enjoyed it. 

When he acted kindly in Blapei, his subordinates felt him easygoing; however, if he did that at this 

moment, he would make his subordinates flattered and highly inspired. Zhang Tie was still the same 

person; however, due to different positions, the same deed had different effects. 



Seeing Zhang Tie coming over, the cavalry who was feeding his xiphodon instantly became thrilled as he 

hurriedly stood at attention. 

"Easy, I saw you feeding it with something weird and it seemed to be different to other food!" Zhang Tie 

explained kindly, "What did you feed just now. Can you show it to me?" 

"Colonel, I’m feeding Tyrrhenia with perilla stem!" the warrior answered loudly as he passed a hat-sized 

pie to Zhang Tie. 

Zhang Tie took it over and found it was about 5 or 6 kg. It was made of leaves of dried broad-leaved 

herbaceous plant in the shape of pie. Zhang Tie remembered that Sabrina told him that xiphodon ate 

meat. He also found that most of xiphodons ate jerk these days. 

Coincidentally, Sabrina was at Zhang Tie’s side. Zhang Tie then threw a dubious look at her. 

"My clan elder. Don’t look at me like that. I didn’t lie to you..." Sabrina peered at Zhang Tie in a charming 

way, "Tyrrhenia is the speciality in Costari Plain and the most favorite food of xiphodon. As there’s no 

tyrrhenia in other places except for Costari Plain, xiphodon could only eat meat in other places. Even in 

Costari Plain, tyrrhenia could not be easily found. When there’s no tyrrhenia, we will feed them with 

meat." 

’Xiphodon is an omnivorous animal?’ Zhang Tie realized that at once. However, after thinking it 

carefully, he found it was not strange at all. ’Most of bulky terrestrial animals like bear and elephant are 

omnivorous animals even herbivores. Aren’t horse and cow herbivores? But they are all very powerful 

and could run fast. Weren’t dinosaurs, the biggest and strongest animals in the legend, herbivores? 

Zhang Tie bore the name of tyrrhenia in mind and was thinking about taking a look at such a plant when 

he reached Costari Plain. 

After taking a round in the camp of Thor’s Hammer, Zhang Tie was going to come back. Right then, an 

airship flew towards the camp. Although being not as exaggerating as the fury-class airship, it was also 

huge and shiny, which looked brilliant. A remarkably huge bear-head symbol being surrounded by gears 

was on it. 

"Eschyle City sends you beauties?" Sabrina blinked her eyes towards Zhang Tie. 

"I guess they are here to inquire about the intention of huge bear tribe!" Zhang Tie smiled. 

"Haven’t you heard the term "Spencer women?" Sabrina asked. 

"What do you mean?" 

Therefore, Sabrina told Zhang Tie about the allusion, "I bet the big figures of Spencer clan must bring 

you some beautiful Spencer beauties. Perhaps they are using honey trap to you!" 

"Is my image that embarrassed? Do Spencer clan plan to deal with me by only two women?" Zhang Tie 

almost cried. 

"It seems that it’s my fault!" Sabrina sighed. 



Zhang Tie burst out laughter. Ignoring others’ eyes, he directly patted Sabrina’s plumpy butts. After that, 

he walked towards his tent, "What are you talking about? How come a man blame a woman. Let’s take a 

look at the Spencer women!" 

Looking at Zhang Tie’s casual look, Sabrina revealed a smile as she walked towards the main tent in the 

distance together with Zhang Tie. 

The huge airship landed about 1 km away from the camp. After that, a team of people walked towards 

the camp... 

Chapter 489: A Sudden Change 

 

On the way back to the main tent, Zhang Tie listened to Sabrina’s introduction about Spencer clan as he 

gradually improved his plan in his heart. 

According to the information revealed by Sabrina, Zhang Tie realized that he might rip off Spencer clan if 

he was lucky enough. He had already fabricated a reason——Eschyle City asked 4 silver coins from him 

when he entered the city. 

This was obviously a prejudice to Zhang Tie. 

’If this reason would not make Spencers spurt blood, how about the lengendary clan elder of huge bear 

tribe being wanted by the police station of Eschyle City?’ 

The wanted circular of Eschyle City almost killed Zhang Tie. Thankfully, Bluesea Castle revoked the 

wanted circular for Zhang Tie at a high price. Zhang Tie still owed Bluesea Castle the repeal of the 

wanted circular instead of Eschyle City. 

’As I was a trivial figure at that moment, after the wanted circular was revoked, Eschyle City only 

dispatched one person to manage me without promising any compensation. If I told them about this, 

they would consider it well. 

On some events, Zhang Tie was not that open-minded, neither was he that kind of person who would 

stand being spat with saliva on face. As Spencer clan was wrong first, he had the reason to make a fuss. 

Sabrina told Zhang Tie everything about Spencer clan and Eschyle City, which deepened Zhang Tie’s 

understanding about this women. 

Until now Zhang Tie and Sabrina were still just friends and lovers. They had not broken through the last 

barrier. Although Sabrina was infamous outside, Zhang Tie knew that she was not only innocent but also 

had her own pursuit. Compared to most women’s dependence on men, Sabrina was very powerful 

inside. She dreamed to be an independent female who could control her own fate. 

His current social status was completely different than that one month ago. However, Sabrina always 

kept a distance with him. Although they were still intimate, they didn’t seek for stimulation without any 

consideration any longer. 

Because of this, Zhang Tie became more respectful about Sabrina. 



After sleeping a girl, Zhang Tie would always treasure her better. Whereas, Zhang Tie also gave enough 

respect to the women who didn’t sleep with him. 

Zhang Tie knew that Sabrina was trying her best to display her value in front of Zhang Tie. This woman 

was very smart and valuable. Additionally, due to her special status, she could get many unusual 

information. Zhang Tie felt her words very enlightening. 

"You are really familiar with Eschyle City. Are you going to settle down there?" Zhang Tie joked. 

"Compared to other tribes in Ice and Snow Wilderness, the atmosphere in Eschyle City is more relaxed. 

There’re more opportunities to make money over there. Additionally, my status might frighten many 

people over there. I truly thought about that before!" Sabrina confessed. as she ran her fingers through 

here hair womanly, "Additionally, it’s also convenient to leave Ice and Snow Wilderness from Eschyle 

City. I was thinking that if that old man of wild bear tribe forced me too much, I would leave Ice and 

Snow Wilderness and bought a small island in Ewentra Archipelago. I preferred to be a king of an isle. 

After that, I will open a hotel or a bar by the sea. After that, I could look at the sea or take a walk on the 

beach everyday!" 

Zhang Tie burst out laughter at once. He had not imagined that Sabrina had such an idea before. 

... 

The Spencer representatives soon arrived at the camp of the huge bear tribe. It was heard that the head 

of the team was an elder. According to the equivalence principle in this case, elder Gouras went out to 

welcome them; however, Zhang Tie, Pontiff Sarlin and elder Toles waited for them in the main tent. 

As Sabrina was not qualified to attend this meeting, she left the main tent. 

Zhang Tie soon saw the elder of Spencer clan. When the thick curtain of the main tent was opened, 

elder Gouras and that man entered. 

That was an old man with grey hair, who looked spirited and healthy. His name was Rodolfo Spencer. 

After feeling that the old guy’s qi was weaker than that of Gouras and Toles, Zhang Tie finally recovered 

his composure. 

If this world was covered with knights, those people below knights would have no chance to survive any 

more. Elder Sarlin said there was only one knight in Spencer clan, the grandpa’s grandpa of Tilin. He had 

already been over 200 years old. Such an important people would always stay in the clan. He would 

never leave Eschyle City at this moment. 

Since Titlin’s grandpa’s grandpa, the whole Spencer clan failed to cultivate one knight for 200 years at 

the cost of numerous clan resources. From this, we knew how difficult to cultivate a knight. 

Sabrina also mentioned this dilemma facing Spencer clan——no successive top fighting strength. 

Behind this old man was a slightly fat 40-year old man, who was followed by two women. The moment 

the two women entered, Zhang Tie’s eyes gleamed. 

They were very beautiful and had distinctive charms. The elder one was about 30 years old who was 

almost as charming as Sabrina like a ripe honey peach. The younger one was only 17-18 years old, who 

looked naive. 



Although with distinctive images, when the two women walked together, the charming one would be 

more alluring while the naive one would be more innocent. The two women looked similar to each 

other. When they stood together, their charms would drive any men to make crimes. 

They were Spencer women, two nature-born stunners! 

All the four Spencers greeted Zhang Tie with the regular etiquette on greeting clan elder of huge bear 

tribe. 

After that, Rodolfo introduced the other three Spencers to Zhang Tie. After that, he sat on the opposite 

of Zhang Tie, Pontiff Sarlin and Toles. 

Through Rodolfo’s introduction, Zhang Tie knew that 30-odd woman named Matia while the younger 

one named Beryl. As to the rest man, Zhang Tie knew that he was here to make the Spencer elder not 

too embarrassed as he gifted the two women to him. That man was nothing but a ritual prop. Therefore, 

Zhang Tie didn’t even want to remember his name. 

After taking a seat, they exchanged pleasantries with each other for a short while. Then, Rodolfo told 

them about his purpose in a very skilled way. Slow-witted guys might even not understand the meaning 

of this old guy. 

"The prophecy of the great prophet and Pontiff Elzida finally fulfilled. When we received this message, 

as a member of Slavs, iron bear tribe and our Spencers were very spirited about that. Therefore, I’m 

here to congratulate huge bear tribe and clan elder Peter on behalf of Spencers!" 

Soon after Rodolfo finished his words, the fat guy beside him had already took out a brocade box, put it 

on the table before pushing it forward. 

"We know there’s a misunderstanding between clan elder Peter and Eschyle City. Therefore, we’re 

especially here to congratulate clan elder Peter and huge bear tribe. Meanwhile, we extend our sincere 

apology to that we mistook you as a wanted criminal due to our negligence two months ago. We really 

appreciate Bluesea Business Group for correcting us. Thankfully, the misunderstanding didn’t develop 

into a regret. Here are gold checks of about 3 million gold coins in the case. It’s our sincerity. If clan elder 

Peter accept our apology, our Spencers would welcome clan elder Peter to visit Eschyle City at any time. 

We will arrange the most hospitable and solemn reception for clan elder Peter." 

After thinking about two seconds, Zhang Tie figured out four meanings in the elder’s words. 

First, Spencers admitted the legality and sacredness of Peter as the clan elder of huge bear tribe. 

Additionally, as a member of Slavs, Eschyle City would be in consistent with huge bear tribe to a certain 

degree on the events that were involved with the interests of all Slavs. 

Second, Spencers had already known what Bluesea Castle had done for revoking that wanted circular. 

They would compensate Bluesea Business Group and would not let Bluesea Castle suffer a loss in this 

event. 

Third, Spencers might have no high-end fighting strength; however, they had enough money. Now that 

they could afford 3 million gold coins a gift, Spencers could also spend more money to support Eschyle 

City in the battle. By then, the two parties would suffer a loss. 



Fourth, if you agree, let your army of 100,000 warriors go back as soon as possible. After that, Spencers 

would welcome Peter to visit Eschyle City at any time. The two beauties also presented their sincerity. 

After thinking for a few moment, Zhang Tie finally figured out Rodolfo’s words. 

’F*ck, are all these old guys that smart and hypocratical?’ Zhang Tie swore inside. If they were two gang 

leaders, one of them would have long patted the gold checks of 300 gold coins onto the table and asked 

"Who will roll out of here first, you or me?" How easy would that be? 

Everyone fixed their eyes on Zhang Tie. Gouras was even worried that Zhang Tie might not understand 

the meaning of the old guy. 

"Let bygones be bygones. I heard the spring in Sciatta was nice. I just want to take a look over there. 

After resting one day in Sciatta Town, my army would turn northward and return to Costari Plain. If 

possible, I will pay a visit to Eschyle City next time!" Zhang Tie opened his mouth. 

Soon after the words, not only Rodolfo and the other Spencers, even Sarlin, Gouras and Toles let out a 

deep sigh. Everyone became reassured. 

Sciatta Town was still over 300 km away from Eschyle City. If the army of huge bear tribe finally stopped 

in Sciatta Town. Everyone would feel acceptable. 

Therefore, the atmosphere in the main tent became relaxed at once. 

Gouras and Toles exchanged glances with each other as they were all surprised about Zhang Tie’s 

calmness and decisiveness. Even if Peter was chosen as the clan elder of huge bear tribe by Elzida, 

Peter’s performance refresh the two people’s recognition about him. 

After leading the army of 100,000 warriors for a few days, Peter displayed the great power of huge bear 

tribe, which was threatening to all tribes. Meanwhile, he gained 3 million gold coins from Eschyle City so 

easily. What a hopeful clan elder! 

Not until then, elder Gouras clapped. After that, a team of warriors entered and served drinks and food 

on the two tables... 

Naturally, the guests and the owner became happy and harmonious. 

... 

Unexpectedly, when Rodolfo bottomed up for the clan mission in the main tent of huge bear tribe, the 

whole Eschyle City were sent in chaos completely after a ground-breaking explosion. 

After that explosion, the whole Iron Bear Castle became ruins. The whole city was shocked by that 

explosion. Many residents in Eschyle City were shocked by that explosion so much that their faces even 

turned utterly pale. Gradually, the eyes of some city guards who resided Eschyle City started to turn red. 

Meanwhile, they started to attack everyone that they saw... 

As a result, the Eschyle City was gradually filled with cries, battle calls and roars. 

The entire city started to weep... 

... 



One hour later, when a flurried people bumped into the main tent "accompanied" by two warriors of 

huge bear tribe regardless of rites. He passed an emergency note that he got through remote-sensing 

crystal to Rodolfo. Only after one glance, Rodolfo instantly sprung up as his face turned from white to 

red and from red to black. Finally he spurted a mouthful of blood and fell back onto the ground. 

... 

A few minutes later, acute and inspiring mort drifted in the camp of the huge bear tribe. 

Zhang Tie rushed into the camp of Thor’s Hammer like a storm as he raised high his battle hammer. 

"Thor’s Hammer, have my order! Everyone, throw away your heavy armors and supplies, only take your 

weapons and follow me!" 

Zhang Tie then jumped onto his xiphodon and rushed out of the camp of Thor’s Hammer together with 

his bodyguards. 

At the same time, his bloody and fiery curtain rose into the sky... 

That was a burning banner in the chilly wind... 

That was a flying banner under the brilliant stars... 

At the sight of the rising banner and first one rushing out of the camp, all the warriors of Thor’s 

Hammer’s eyes turned red. Among endless growls, 5000 xiphodons followed up that banner in a 

dauntless way. 

After that, numerous hoofs boomed the ground... 

Chapter 490: 1000 Km Gallop 

 

Before daybreak, a blood-red color appeared on the horizon, which was not the sunlight, but the big fire 

in Eschyle City below it. 

After 11 hours of gallop, Zhang Tie finally arrived at the periphery of Eschyle City together with his 

Thor’s Hammer. 

After running over 1000 km, even the strongest xiphodons felt very fatigued at this moment. 

In the cold wild, after running over night, the 5000-odd xiphodons were like red iron pots being sprayed 

with cold water as each of them were steaming. 

This was a small hillside right over 20 km away in the northwest of Eschyle City. A limpid stream flew by 

the hillside from its foot. Even though Zhang Tie was very anxious inside, he had to stop Thor’s Hammer 

and take a rest in order to deal with the coming fierce battle. 

No matter how powerful a bolt was, when its energy was exhausted, it could barely break a thin silk 

cloth. Although it looked cool to rush towards Eschyle City from 1 km away, it was a huge challenge to 

both cavalries and xiphodons. Cavalries still stuck to it; however, xiphodons were already very tired. If 

they did not take a rest for a short while, Thor’s Hammer’s fighting performance would decline. 



"Rest half an hour. Then, we will set out!" 

Soon after Zhang Tie delivered his order, all the cavalries jumped off the xiphodons silently. However, 

none of the cavalries took a rest; instead, they started to help their xiphodons relax themselves and 

recover energy. This skill had to be mastered by cavalries, which was concluded by the cavalries of the 

huge bear tribe after hundreds of years of practices. It was a kind of a massage. After the whole 

massage, the xiphodons’ physical strength and running ability could recover rapidly. 

Of course, Zhang Tie didn’t know about this skill. However, he had another method. After jumping off 

his xiphodon, Zhang Tie pasted his palm onto xiphodon’s body. After locking the xiphodon’s stomach 

with his powerful spirit, Zhang Tie directly injected 6 vials of all-purpose medicament into his stomach 

from Castle of Black Iron. 

This method was taught by Heller when he disguised as the God underground. When his spirit was 

powerful enough and the opponent was relaxed, the substance was carried out of Castle of Black Iron 

could penetrate into the opponent’s cell walls in disperse pattern. In this case, Zhang Tie could directly 

inject water, all-purpose medicament or recovery medicament into the opponent’s stomach. 

Zhang Tie implemented this in the name of the "God’s will" by touching the patients to cure them. 

Of course, some had noticed Zhang Tie’s movement; however, they didn’t pay special attention to that. 

When Zhang Tie left the xiphodon and climbed onto the top of the hill to observe the situation in 

Eschyle City in the distance with some people, one of Zhang Tie’s bodyguard walked towards his 

xiphodon to massage it. However, he found that Zhang Tie’s xiphodon had already recovered its physical 

strength, which arouse the curiosity of the nearby warriors... 

Zhang Tie climbed onto the top of the hill and watched the big fire in Eschyle City in the distance. He 

clenched his fist as a painful expression flashed across his eyes. Zhang Tie knew that people would die 

every second in Eschyle City. 

If he was alone, Zhang Tie would have long rushed towards Eschyle City at once. However, as the 

general of Thor’s Hammer, he had to be responsible for those people who handed their lives to him. He 

could not send those pious warriors into dilemma due to his warm blood and impulsion. 

Therefore, even if Eschyle City was covered with blood at this moment, the Thor’s Hammer had to rest 

here for half an hour at least. 

At this moment, Zhang Tie finally understood the proverb "Kind people are not suitable to rule the 

army", because no matter whatever decision he made, he would always have to sacrifice many lives. 

Clenching his fist, Zhang Tie kept his eyes closed for a couple of seconds. After opening his eyes, he 

looked more decisive. 

Zhang Tie was followed by Roslav, Waajid and some generals of Thor’s Hammer. At the sight of the city 

full of wails in the fire, they all looked very solemn. 

After a boom, Iron Bear Castle was completely destroyed by an alchemist’s bomb. Spencer clan suffered 

a great loss. The command center of the clan was paralyzed at once. They still didn’t know about the 

casualties in Spencer clan because of that boom. They were only told that the elites of Spencer clan 

were holding a conference in Iron Bear Castle when Iron Bear Castle was destroyed by an alchemist’s 



bomb. Closely after that, a lot of demon puppets appeared in Eschyle City, turning this city into a hell at 

once. 

The earliest demon puppets were transformed by at least 80,000 city guards in Eschyle City. No one 

knew how many commoners in Eschyle City were transformed into demon puppets. 

That was why Zhang Tie insisted on rushing towards here. The appearance of demon puppets indicated 

that demons or three-eye association were involved in it. 

The most important thing in front of them were the number of demon puppets and whether they were 

controlled by puppet worms. After the event in Heavens Cold City, Zhang Tie deeply knew the terror of 

demon puppets. If demon puppets were controlled by puppet worms, it would be more terrifying. 

Right then, under the gaze of everyone on the top of the hill, a cavalry of about 50 people soon reached 

the foot of the hill while hefting a banner of the huge bear tribe. 

After receiving the intelligence from Eschyle City last night, Zhang Tie had already ordered the vanguard 

of the huge bear tribe to save as more people as possible in Eschyle City. Therefore, the vanguard of 

3000 cavalries arrived here in a few hours ago. 

The leader of the cavalry was soon guided by Zhang Tie and the other generals of Thor’s Hammer. 

"Clan elder!" the enterprising leader stood upright. Meanwhile, he raised his right hand forward and 

punched onto his left chest at once as a military salute. 

"How is the situation in Eschyle City?" Zhang Tie put it straight. 

"It’s very chaotic. The whole city was disordered. People were killed everywhere. Our team has just 

arrived there for less than 2 hours. Given the chaotic situation in Eschyle City, we didn’t dig deep into it. 

Under the command of the leader, we grabbed the north gate of Eschyle City and opened it so that the 

alive people could escape out of there!" 

"How many demon puppets are there in the City?" 

"At least 600,000 people, among them were at least 150,000 regular soldiers in Eschyle City. As demon 

puppets killed every alive people they saw. Few soldiers who had not been demonized were still fighting 

those demon puppets. Spencer have already lost their control of this city. Everyone is fighting for 

themselves!" 

"Were those demonized puppets acting like a well-organized army? Did they look like being commanded 

by others?" 

"My vanguards have already fought some demonized puppets. They are too crazy to be killed; however, 

they are poorly organized. They just killed every alive man they saw!" 

Zhang Tie thought about it for a few seconds, "Do you know the most populated place of demonized 

puppets?" 

"I was told by some residents escaping out of the city that the most populated place of demonized 

puppets was near the Iron Bear Castle of Spencer clan!" 



"Near the Iron Bear Castle?" Zhang Tie considered it for a short while before sighing inside. "Spencer 

clan is over. The Iron Bear Castle and its neighborhood was where the most of the Spencers lived." 

However, now, Iron Bear Castle was boomed into pieces. After pouring in another hundreds of 

thousands of demonized puppets from the neighborhood, how many Spencers could still survive such a 

catastrophe would be a question. 

Although having not seen it himself, Zhang Tie could almost confirm that the maternal puppet worm 

was in the Iron Bear Castle. Perhaps that boom killed that maternal puppet along with the Iron Bear 

Castle. Therefore, so many demonized puppets gathered around the Iron Bear Castle. 

"Fine, I know. Go back and tell your vanguard head. Guard the north gate of Eschyle City. The Thor’s 

Hammer would arrive soon!" 

"Yes, sir!" the team leader punched onto his chest once again towards Zhang Tie before leaving the top 

of the hill rapidly. 

Zhang Tie glanced at those generals of Thor’s Hammer. After hearing the words of the team leader, the 

generals of Thor’s Hammer didn’t look worried; instead, they looked faintly excited as their eyes 

glittered. 

The catastrophe facing Spencer clan and the chaotic situation in Eschyle City was indeed a good chance 

for the huge bear tribe. 

"Bring me the map of Eschyle City!" 

Closely after Zhang Tie’s words, an adviser among the generals opened a metal cylinder and took out of 

the map of Eschyle City from it. 

For various tribes in Ice and Snow Wilderness, as long as the army set out, each troop had to take maps 

of the other tribes’ habitation, especially Eschyle City. They could buy one in Eschyle City at the cost of a 

couple of silver coins. They could dispatch some people here to look around the Eschyle City before 

drawing a military map on the basis of the original map. 

After opening the water-proof military map and pressing the four corners of the map with some fluorite 

lamps, the generals of Thor’s Hammer stood aside and watched the map while holding their breaths. 

Zhang Tie watched it for a short while before drawing a circle of about 5-6 square kilometers by a red 

pen centered in the Iron Bear Castle of Eschyle City. After that, he started to deploy the battle plan... 

 


